WHITE’S HISTORY,GAZETTEER AND DIRECTORY OF STAFFORDSHIRE, 1851

ASHLEY, in Market Drayton Union, is a small village, on a declivity, 7 miles N.W. of Eccleshall, and 9 miles S.W. of Newcastle-under-Lyme ; comprising within its parish several hamlets, 853 inhabitants, and about 2600 acres of land, mostly belonging to Thomas Kinnersly and Hugo Charles Meynell Ingram, Esqrs., who are joint lords of the manor, and patrons of the rectory, the former having two turns and the latter one.  The rectory, valued in the K.B. at £10. 2s. 8d., and in 1831 at £316, is in the incumbency  of the Rev. T.H. Harding, M.A., who has a large thatched residence and 30 acres of glebe.   The Church (St. John the Baptist,) is an ancient fabric, on the south side of which is a chapel, containing monuments and effigies of the six Lords Gerard, of Bromley, the last of whom died in 1707. These barons and their wives are some of them represented in a kneeling, and others in a recumbent posture.   In 1830, T. Kinnersly, Esq., obtained a faculty to erect a cemetery for his family, on the south side of the chancel. The Catholic Chapel, near the south end of the village, was rebuilt in 1828, of brick, cemented and highly ornamented in imitation of stone.   Its windows are decorated with stained glass, representing the Apostles, and a variety of other figures and devices.   Here is also an Independent Chapel, erected in 1841.

Benefactions. – In 1708 and 1723, £200 bequeathed to the poor of Ashley parish, by Stephen Denston and others, was laid out in the purchase of land, called Wild Pickin’s Meadow, and Pinshutt’s Closes, containing 10 acres 3 roods 27 perches, to which as allotment of 2 acres

 2 roods 21 perches was made at the enclosure, in 1820, when the original poor’s land was exchanged for the same quantity, lying nearer the village, with the addition of a small house and barn.   The whole is let for £31 a year, of which 4s. is given monthly in bread, and the

rest in money at Christmas and St. Thomas’s day.  The National School

was built in 1829.

ASHLEY HEATH, one of the highest levels in England, gives name to a

small village, about 1 mile S.W. of Ashley, and was enclosed under an act

passed in 1812.  The Primitive Methodists have a small chapel here.

WILLOWBRIDGE WELLS are on the north side of the parish, nearly two miles N. of Ashley, and in the neighbourhood of the extensive woods belonging to the Bishop of Lichfield, and H.C. Meynell Ingram, Esq.  These woods supply immense quantities of crate-wood for the Potteries, and timber for the manufacturer of oak baskets.  The wells in the now enclosed park of Willowbridge were formerly in great celebrity for their medicinal virtues.

Plot says, the water carries with it the most rectified sulphur of any in England, not being as usual of a yellow colour, but clear as crystal, and so abundant, that he computed not less than sixty copious springs of it rising within the space of ten yards square.  These springs now supply a pond occupying about the eighth part of an acre, and having in it gold and silver

fish.   Baroness Gerard, who had a stately seat at Bromley, first discovered the restorative properties of this water, about the year 1650, and at her own expense constructed several baths, and erected “divers apartments for lodging the poorer sort of diseased, impotent people.”   The old well-house still remains, but there are no baths.   Willowbridge Park is the residence of Samuel Harding, Esq., and commands delightful prospects of high

woodland scenery.  Wellings Cave has three rooms worked out of the  solid rock, and a long subterraneous passage, which has been explored nearly 200 yards, and is supposed to extend to Maer Pool.

DIRECTORY. – Those marked 2 reside at Ashley-heath, 3 Birch house 4 Hungershutt, 5 Park cottage, 6 Willings, 7 Willowbridge Wells, 8 Field-farm, and the rest in Ashley.  Hook Gate, on Ashley Heath, is partly in Ashley, Blore, and Eccleshall.

Adams Joseph, plumber, painter, &c.

Andrews George, drill owner

Astin Mr. John // Cooper Mr Henry

Barlow William, cooper

Barratt James, saddler, Post Office

Bayley Thomas, bricklayer

Beard Joseph Down, surgeon

Blakeman William, butcher and victualler Farm Yard Inn

Cartledge Mrs Francis, schoolmistress

Caulkin Thomas, salt dealer

Groom William, sawyer

Hall Charles, blacking maker

2 Hall James, carpenter and joiner

Hampton Charles, brick maker

7 Harding, Samuel, land agent, surveyor, and valuer

Harding Rev Thomas Hartshorne, M.A., rector, Rectory

7 Harding Thomas, gamekeeper, Park

Hassall Mary, victualler Meynell’s Arms

Hodgson William, pork butcher

2 Johnson Daniel, higler

Lightfoot William, parish clerk

Lycett James, shopkeeper,shoemaker, and maltster

2 Machin John, victualler Loggerheads

Machin Mr.Charles // Peake Richard

McGrath Rev Francis (Catholic)

2 Parton William, joiner, &c.

Pickstock William butcher

Roberts Thomas, surgeon

Symcock John, cart owner

2 Talbot Thomas, wheelwright

Tomkinson John, bricklayer

2 Wade Francis, joiner, &c.

Whittingham William, wheelwright

BASKET MAKERS.

2 Banks, John

Parton John

2 Parton William

BEERHOUSES.

Ashley William

Hopwood Thomas

2 Hulme Nancy

Symcock Thomas

BLACKSMITHS.

2 Bruckshaw John

2 Child Joseph

Fox John and William

FARMERS.

(*are Owners.)

Ashley William

3 Astin John

2*Averill Catherine

Benbow Thomas

2 Butters Susan

2*Butters Thomas

2*Cooper James

2 Dain Major (and wood dealer)

Dunn George

Gibbs John

Hodgson William

Hopwood Abraham

4 Key William

Lawton Richard

2 Machin John

Martin John

*Nicklin, Samuel

5 Parr John

Pickstock Samuel

6 Sillito James

2 Sutton Thomas

8 Ward Mary

Wright John

SHOEMAKERS.

Boughey William

2 Boughey Thomas

Lycett James

Williams Henry

Williams John

SHOPKEEPERS.

2 Green William

Hope Joseph

2 Hulme Nancy

Lycett James

Parr John

TAILORS.

2 Hutchinson John

2 James William

Martin Joseph

Symcock William

POST OFFICE

at James Barratt’s.

Foot post to Market Drayton

5 evening.

